
 

 
 

Agendas, Reports and Minutes will be provided upon request in the following formats: 
 
Large Clear Print: Braille: Audio: Native Language 

 

 West Lindsey District Council  

 Guildhall Gainsborough 
Lincolnshire DN21 2NA 

Tel: 01427 676676 Fax: 01427 675170 
 

AGENDA       

 
This meeting will be webcast live and the video archive published on our 

website 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Tuesday, 17th May, 2022 at 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber - The Guildhall 
 
PLEASE NOTE DUE TO CAPACITY LIMITS WITHIN THE GUILDHALL WE WILL 
BE OPERATING A REDUCED PUBLIC VIEWING GALLERY  
 
Those wishing to simply view the meeting will be able to watch live via:  
https://west-lindsey.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
 
Members: Membership as confirmed at Annual Council 

 
Councillor Mrs D Rodgers (Chairman) 
Councillor T Coulson 
Councillor T Davies 
Councillor C Grimble 
Councillor C Hill 
Councillor C McCartney 
Councillor P Morris 
Councillor R Patterson 
Councillor R Waller 
 
 

1.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2.  Minutes of the previous meeting 
Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday, 
29 March 2022 
 

(TO FOLLOW) 

3.  Members' Declarations of Interest 
Members may make any declarations of interest at this point and 
may also make them at any point during the meeting. 
 

 

4.  Matters Arising Schedule 
There are no outstanding Matters Arising from previous meetings. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://west-lindsey.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

 

5.  Public Reports   

i)  Overview and Scrutiny Operating Methodology 
 

(PAGES 3 - 20) 

ii)  Preparations for Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan for 
Civic Year 2022/23 
 

(PAGE 21) 

6.  General Work Items   

i)  Forward Plan 
 

(PAGES 22 - 25) 

 
Ian Knowles 

Head of Paid Service 
The Guildhall 

Gainsborough 
 

Monday, 9 May 2022 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Tuesday, 17 May 2022 

 

     
Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Operating Methodology 

 

 
 
Report by: 
 

 
Ele Snow 
Senior Democratic and Civic Officer 

 
Contact Officer: 
 

 
Ele Snow 
Senior Democratic and Civic Officer 
 
Ele.Snow@west-lindsey.gov.uk  
 

 
Purpose / Summary: 
 

  
To reconfirm the Committee Operating 
Methodology 

  

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 

1. That Members of the Committee approve the proposed Operating 
Methodology for implementation throughout the 2022/23 Civic Year. 

 
 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

Legal: The Constitution of the Council states that the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee will undertake a review of its Operating Methodology each year (Part 
IV, Responsibility for Functions, page 16, paragraph 1) 

 

Financial: There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 

Staffing: The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is supported by existing 
resources within the Democratic Services team, there are no additional staffing 
implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity including Human Rights: The work of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee seeks to benefit all those residing, working or visiting in 
West Lindsey. Where additional needs are highlighted, for example access to 
public meetings, these are addressed as necessary. 
 

Data Protection Implications: There are no data protection implications arising 
from this report, however, where there may be discussion items which involve 
the likely disclosure of personal or private information, the Committee will 
resolve to exclude public and press from such items. 

 

Climate Related Risks and Opportunities: Whilst there are no related risks 
arising from this report, consideration must be given to opportunities for climate 
related improvements. Consideration may be given to, for example, the number 
of meetings, the requirement for Members to travel, and ensuring that there is 
sufficient business to necessitate meetings to take place. 

 

Section 17 Crime and Disorder Considerations: There are no relevant 
considerations arising from this report, however the Committee does receive at 
least annual reports under section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006. 

 

Health Implications: There are no health implications arising from this report, 
although it is noted that aspects of the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee aim to support the work of the Council in improving health and 
wellbeing provision across the district.  

 

Title and Location of any Background Papers used in the preparation of 
this report : 

 

Risk Assessment: N/A 

 

Page 4



 

 

Call in and Urgency: 

Is the decision one which Rule 14.7 of the Scrutiny Procedure Rules apply? 

i.e. is the report exempt from being called in due to 
urgency (in consultation with C&I chairman) Yes   No X  

Key Decision: 

A matter which affects two or more wards, or has 
significant financial implications Yes   No X  

Page 5



 

1 Background 
 
1.1 The Operating Methodology for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

sets out the criteria for fulfilling the main functions of the Committee.  
 
1.2  The methodology was introduced in 2014, with an updated version 

reviewed and agreed by the Committee in 2019. It is reviewed annually 
with amendments included from each annual review of the Constitution.  

 
1.3  This approach has worked well and allowed the Committee to structure 

the work streams, according to the criteria in the methodology, 
throughout each year.  

 
1.4 The Operating Methodology is attached for review at Appendix 1. 
 
 
2 Committee Functions and Fulfilling the Scrutiny Role 
 
2.1 The functions of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are detailed in 

Part IV of the Constitution, attached as Appendix 2. 
 
2.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules are given in Part V of the 

Constitution (attached as Appendix 3) and detail how the Committee 
should exercise its rights under the traditional call-in process. 

 
2.3 These functions and procedure rules are considered annually as a part 

of the Constitution Review presented for approval at Annual Council.  
 
2.4 Any amendments are then factored into the review and the Operating 

Methodology.    
 
 
3 Review of Existing Operating Methodology  
 
3.1 The current version of the Operating Methodology has been in place 

since June 2019.  
 
3.2 Following the annual review of the Constitution, there are three 

amendments to the Operating Methodology:   
 

 Scope for pre-decision scrutiny items reduced from four per 
civic year to two. This is to efficiently manage the work plan of 
the committee in consideration of all possible work flow such 
as referrals from Council or policy committees, progress and 
delivery reviews and engagement with outside agencies.  

 Committee requested reviews, that do not fall within the remit 
of pre-decision scrutiny or performance management, to be 
limited to one per civic year, for reasons as detailed above. 

 Table of amendments to be added as an addendum to the 
document, based on agreed changes arising from the 
Constitution review. 

 
Page 6



 

3.3 The updated Operating Methodology will be used as a reference point 
when considering items for the Committee’s work plan for the coming 
civic year. 

 
 
4 Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
4.1 Members are asked to read, comment and, if satisfied, approve the 

Operating Methodology for 2022/23.  
 
 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Operating Methodology  
 

  

Functions covered within this document:  

  

1. Performance management (for service areas presenting performance figures below 

target)  

2. Pre-decision scrutiny (also known as pre-scrutiny and identified from the Forward 

Plan)  

3. Ongoing project work (for example as requested or identified by a policy committee 

or Council)  

  

  

1.   Performance Management  
  

The Committee can request a Service Performance Review (to identify reasons for off-track 

performance and ways to improve) when:  

  

✓ The performance has been off track for at least two consecutive reporting 

periods  

✓ Recommendations from the relevant committee have been implemented and 

allowed time to have an impact  

✓ At least four committee Members wish to request the review   

  

The following restrictions apply:  

  

 A maximum of four such reviews can be requested in any municipal year  

 Any service area subject to such a review is excluded from re-examination 

under any process for the subsequent six month period (ie, further two 

reporting periods)  

  

Process for a Service Performance Review:  

    

✓ The request is to be made in writing, signed by at least four committee 
Members, set out the reasons for the request and be submitted to the O&S 
Clerk at least 21 days prior to the next committee meeting.  

✓ The request will be considered at the next meeting and, if agreed, terms of 

reference for the review group should be set.  

✓ Alternatively, where a request for a Service Performance Review is identified 

during a Committee meeting, and is supported by at least four Members of 

Committee, this will replace the request in writing.  

✓ The Chairman (or representative) of the relevant policy committee is to be 

invited to the meeting where the scope of the review is considered.  

✓ The findings of the review will be heard by the O&S Committee and presented 

to the relevant policy committee, where the Chairman (or representative) of 

O&S shall also attend.  

✓ If the policy committee does not wish to accept the recommendations of the 

review group, the decision shall be referred to Council.  

  

  

Page 8



2.   Pre-Decision Scrutiny  
  

The Committee can identify items for pre-decision scrutiny (also known as pre-scrutiny) from 

those detailed on the Forward Plan. These could be items which are politically sensitive or 

of high public interest and where the Committee considers it would be of benefit to scrutinise 

the proposed decisions in advance.  

  

These items can be selected from the Forward Plan during meetings of the Committee by a 

proposer, seconder and majority vote.  

  

The following restrictions apply:  

  

 A maximum of two ‘pre-scrutiny’ items can be identified per municipal year.  

 The Committee cannot dictate the timeline or prevent the decision being 

submitted to the relevant policy committee within the pre-agreed timescales.  

 Any decision considered under pre-scrutiny cannot then be called-in under the 

traditional process.  

 Any item considered under pre-scrutiny is excluded from re-examination under 

any process for the subsequent six month period.  

 NB: The policy committee is not strictly bound by recommendations from O&S 

however it is expected that they should be given due consideration.  

  

Process for Pre-Decision Scrutiny:  

  

✓ The O&S Committee will receive the exact report due to be presented at the 

policy committee, at least 1 cycle prior to the policy meeting.  

✓ The O&S Committee will make recommendations to the policy committee 

where it feels there are areas to be further addressed in order to support the 

proposed decision.  

✓ The Officer responsible for the report will work with the Chairman / 

representatives of O&S to revise the report accordingly (when necessary).  

✓ The amended report, along with the minute from the O&S meeting and the 

original report, will be submitted to the policy committee within the original 

timescale.  

  

  

3.   Ongoing Project Work  

  

The O&S Committee can be requested by either of the policy committees, or Council, to 

conduct reviews of policy, services or any aspect of a service as identified by the relevant 

committee.   

  

Any such request will be made to the Chairman of the O&S Committee from the Chairman 

(or representative) of the requesting committee / Council. The purpose, scope and terms of 

reference for the review will be agreed by the requesting committee and shared with the 

Chairman of O&S at the time of the request.   

 

Such reviews will form part of the work plan for the O&S Committee, report timescales will 

be set out in the Forward Plan and recommendations will be agreed and shared with the 

referring committee.  

Commented [ES1]: Reduced from four to two for 
reasons of workload management of cttee workplan 

Page 9



 

Where the Committee chooses to conduct a review of policy or services that has not been 

referred by a policy committee, or does not fall under items 1 or 2 as detailed above, such 

reviews are limited to one review per civic year.  

 

 
Updated Versions / Amendments to Operating Methodology*: 

 

June 2019  

May 2022 

 

*the Operating Methodology is reviewed annually by the Committee, however the above dates 

refer to amendments made. 

Commented [ES2]: Additional clarification re cttee 
chosen reviews that fall outside of Performance 
Management and Pre-Decision Scrutiny 

Commented [ES3]: Additional clarification re 
document history. 

Page 10



Reviewed June 2021 Part IV / Page 16 

Responsibility for Functions 
Terms of Reference – Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

1. To exercise the Council’s responsibilities for overview and scrutiny and 
agree each year an operating methodology; 

 
2. To conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service that have 

either been referred by a policy committee or the council, or have been 
chosen by the committee* according to the agreed criteria for selecting 
such reviews 
* reviews chosen by the Committee are limited to 1 per civic year. 

 
3. To approve and keep under review an annual overview and scrutiny work 

programme, including the work programme of any scrutiny panels 
established in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
work programme; 

 
4. To approve the scope, timetable and method for each review by a scrutiny 

panel to put in place and ensure that such reviews are monitored and 
managed efficiently and in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules; 

 
5. To make reports and recommendations to the Council, a policy committee 

or any other Council committee arising from the exercise of these terms 
of reference; 

 
6. To consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the relevant 

Committee on proposed decisions which relate to services within their 
remit  (before they are taken by the appropriate policy committee) – 
limited to 2 per civic year; 

 
7. To exercise the powers of call in and scrutiny in relation to policy 

committee decisions made but not implemented, as set out in section 
21(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 and challenge such decisions in 
accordance with the procedure set out in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules in Part V of this Constitution; 

 
8. To take an overview of the policies, forward plans of related authorities, 

of all public bodies and agencies as they affect the council’s area or its 
inhabitants; and acting as the ‘horizon scanning’ Committee for the 
Council, bringing matters which will have effect to the attention of the 
relevant Policy Committee at the earliest opportunity so they can be 
considered as part of Policy Development. 

 

9. To maintain under review the arrangements for the performance 
monitoring of Council services; 

Page 11



Reviewed June 2021 Part IV / Page 17 

 

 

Responsibility for Functions 
  Terms of Reference – Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

10. To discharge the statutory functions arising under section 19 of the Police 
and Justice Act 2006 relating to issues of crime and disorder and to 
develop and implement such procedures, protocols and criteria as 
deemed by the Committee to be appropriate. 

 

11. This Committee has an operating methodology which is agreed annually at 
its first full meeting. 

 
 

.

Page 12



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Contents 

Rule 

1. Number and arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny Committee.. 26 

2. Seats on Overview and Scrutiny Committee............................... 26 

3. Co-optees............................................................................................. 26 

4. Meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.................... 26 

5. Quorum................................................................................................. 27 

6. Work programme.................................................................................. 27 

7. Agenda items........................................................................................ 27 

8. Policy review and development............................................................ 27 

9. Reports from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.................. 28 

10. Consideration of Overview and Scrutiny Committee reports 

by policy committees............................................................................ 28 

11. Rights of Overview and Scrutiny Committee members to 

documents........................................................................................... 28 

12. Members and officers giving account................................................... 28 

13. Attendance by others............................................................................ 29 

14. Call-in.................................................................................................... 29 

15. Procedure at Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting........... 31 

16. Oversight Commissions …………………………………………………. 32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reviewed June 2021 

Page 13



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 26 

 

Reviewed June 2021  

 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

1. Number and Arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
1.1 The Council will have one Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

‘Overview and Scrutiny Committee’ 

It will perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council and 

will be politically balanced. 
 

1.2 The terms of reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be as 
detailed in Article 7 and Part IV of the Constitution. 

 
2. Seats on Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
2.1 All Councillors with the exception of the Chairman, Leader of the Council, 

Deputy Leader of the Council, Leader of the Opposition and any serving 
Member of either policy committee may be members of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee.  However, no member may be involved in scrutinising a 
decision in which he/she has been directly involved. 

 
2.2 A member must if he/she is involved in the consideration of a matter at a 

meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Authority or a sub-

committee of that Committee, regard himself/herself as having a personal and 

a prejudicial interest if that consideration relates to a decision made, or action 

taken, by another of the Council’s – 

 
• committees or sub-committees; or 

• joint committees or joint sub-committees. 

 
of which he/she may also be a member and took part in that decision making. 

 
2.3 Sub-paragraph (2.2) above shall not apply if that member attends that 

meeting for the purpose of answering questions or otherwise giving evidence 
relating to that decision or action. 

 
3. Co-optees 

 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to appoint a 

number of people as non-voting co-optees. 

 
4. Meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
4.1 Special meetings may be called from time to time as and when appropriate. 

Page 14



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 27 

 

Reviewed June 2021  

 

4.2 An Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting may be called by the Chairman 

of the Committee, by a simple majority of members of the Committee or by the 

Proper Officer if he/she considers it necessary or appropriate. 

 
5. Quorum 

 
5.1 The quorum for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be one quarter 

of the whole numbers of members provided that in no case shall the 

quorum of the committee be less than four voting members. 

 
6. Work Programme 

 
6.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be responsible for reporting 

annually to the Council on both its proposed work plan and its work in the 

preceding year and, in doing so, shall take into account wishes of members on 
the Committee who are not members of the largest political group on the 

Council. 

 
7. Agenda Items 

 
7.1 Any member of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to give 

notice to the Proper Officer that he/she wishes an item relevant to the functions 
of the Committee to be included on the agenda for the next available meeting 

of the Committee.  On receipt of such a request, the Proper Officer will ensure 

that it is included on the next available agenda. 

 
7.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall also respond, as soon as its work 

programme permits, to requests from the Council and policy committees to 

review particular areas of council activity. Where it does so, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee shall report their findings and any recommendations back 

to the relevant policy committee and/or Council.  The Council and/or the 
relevant policy committee shall consider the report of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at the next available meeting. 

 
7.3 There will be a standing item on the agenda of all ordinary meetings of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee which will allow for consideration to be given 
to the work programme. 

 
8. Policy Review and Development 

 
8.1 The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in relation to the 

development of the Council’s budget and policy framework is set out in detail in 
the Budgetary and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in Part V of this 
Constitution. 

 
8.2 In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other matters not 

forming part of its policy and budgetary framework, the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee may make proposals to policy committees for 

developments in so far as they relate to matters within its terms of reference. 

Page 15



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 28 

 

Reviewed June 2021  

 

8.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may hold inquiries and investigate the 

available options for future direction in policy development and may appoint 

advisers and assessors to assist in this process.  It may go on site visits, 

conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, commission research and do all 

other things that it reasonably considers necessary to inform its deliberations. It 

may ask witnesses to attend to address it on any matter under consideration 

and may pay to any advisers, assessors and witnesses a reasonable fee and 

expenses for doing so. 

 
9. Reports from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
9.1 Once it has formed recommendations on proposals for development, the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee will prepare formal reports and submit them 

to the Proper Officer for consideration by the relevant policy committee (if the 

proposals are consistent with the existing budgetary and policy framework), or 

to the Council as appropriate (e.g. if the recommendation would require a 

departure from, or a change to, the agreed budgetary and policy framework). 

 
9.2 If the Overview and Scrutiny Committee cannot agree on one single final report 

to the Council or the relevant policy committee as appropriate, then up to one 
minority report may be prepared and submitted for consideration by the 

Council or policy committee with the majority report. 

 
9.3 The Council or policy committee shall consider any report of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee at the next available meeting after being submitted to the 
Proper Officer. 

 
10. Consideration of Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Reports by 

Policy Committees 

 
10.1 Once an Overview and Scrutiny report on any matter which is the responsibility 

of a policy committee has been completed, it shall be included on the agenda 

of the next available meeting of the relevant policy committee. 

 
11. Rights of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members to Documents 

 
11.1 In addition to their rights as Councillors, members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee have the additional right to documents and to notice of meetings as 

set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part V of this 
Constitution. 

 
11.2 Nothing in this paragraph prevents more detailed liaison between the relevant 

policy committee and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee as appropriate 
depending on the particular matter under consideration. 

 
12. Members and Officers Giving Account 

 
12.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may scrutinise and review decisions 

made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any council functions 

within its remit.  As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the 

Page 16



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 29 

 

Reviewed June 2021  

 

scrutiny role, it may require any member of a policy committee, the Head of 

Paid Service or an Assistant Director to attend before it to explain in relation 

to matters within its remit – 

 
(a) any particular decision or series of decisions; and 

(b) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy 

and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required. 

More junior officers may be invited to assist the Committee. 
 

12.2 Where any member or officer is required to attend the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee under this provision, the Chairman of the Committee will inform the 

Proper Officer.  The Proper Officer shall inform the member or officer in writing 

giving at least five working days’ notice of the meeting at which he/she is 

required to attend.  The notice will state the nature of the item on which he/she 

is required to attend to give account and whether any papers are required to be 

produced for the Committee.  Where the account to be given to the Committee 

will require the production of a report, then the member or officer concerned will 

be given sufficient notice to allow for presentation of that documentation. 

 
12.3 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the member or officer is unable to attend 

on the required date, and then the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall, in 

consultation with the member or officer, arrange an alternative date for 

attendance. 

 
13. Attendance by Others 

 
13.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may invite people other than those 

people referred to in paragraph 12 above to address it, discuss issues of local 

concern and/or answer questions on issues within the remit of the committee. 

The committee may, for example, wish to hear from residents, stakeholders and 

members and officers in other parts of the public sector and shall invite such 

people to attend. 

 
14. Call-In 

 
14.1 Call-in should occur where members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee have evidence which suggests that the policy committee(s) for 

which it is responsible did not take the decision in accordance with the 

principles set out in Article 12. 

 
14.2 Five working days are to be allowed for the call-in of decisions.  The procedure 

is as follows – 

 
(a) If four members on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee wish to call 

in a decision with a view to requesting that the relevant policy 

committee reconsiders the decision, this must be done within five 

Page 17



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 30 

 

 

 

working days of publication of the decision, provided the issue in 

question has not been recorded as urgent. 

 
(b) Any request to call in a decision must be in writing, be signed by the four 

members and set out the resolution to be considered.  The call-in notice 

should also set out the reason(s) why the decision should be 

reconsidered.  The notice should be sent to the Head of Paid Service no 

later than 5pm on the fifth working day following publication of the 

decision. 

 
(c) Decisions can only be called in once and must be considered at the next 

meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee unless the agenda for 

that meeting has already been published.  If the agenda has been 

published, the issue will be considered at the subsequent Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee meeting unless the matter is considered urgent by 

the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, taking into 

account any views of the Chairman of the Committee whose decision 

has been called in. 

 
(d) The date of publication of the decision will be deemed to be the day on 

which the minutes were published on the Council’s website. 

 
(e) If having considered the decision the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee may: 

 
(i) refer back to the relevant policy committee for further 

consideration, setting out in writing its recommendations; or 

(ii) not refer back to the relevant policy committee and the decision 

shall take effect on the date of the overview and scrutiny meeting. 

 
14.3 Where a matter is to be referred to another committee, call-in only applies after 

the matter has been considered by that other committee. 

 
14.4 Call-in does not apply to recommendations to Council nor to Council decisions 

themselves. 

 
14.5 The Chairman of the committee whose decision has been called in shall be 

invited to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting when the item is 

considered.  The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (or his/her 

representative) shall attend the policy committee meeting when the called-in 

item goes back for consideration. 

 
14.6 Where a policy committee does not wish to accept the recommendation(s) of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a called-in decision, the decision shall be 

referred to Council. 

 
14.7 The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being 

taken by the policy committee is urgent.  A decision will be urgent if any delay 

likely to be caused by the call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s 

Page 18



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 31 

 

 

 

or the public interest.  The record of the decision shall state whether, in the 

opinion of the decision-making committee, the decision is an urgent one 

and, therefore, not subject to call-in.  The committee taking the decision 

must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the 

circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency.  The 

Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be consulted 

before any matter is dealt with under this urgency procedure. 

 
14.8 Urgency in this context goes further than the urgency provisions 

contained in the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
relating to late reports. A report may well have been submitted to the 

relevant committee in good time but the implementation of the decision is 
nevertheless considered urgent. 

 
14.9 The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency 

shall be monitored annually. 

 
15. Procedure at Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

 
15.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall consider the 

following  business – 

 
(a) minutes of the last meeting; 

(b) declarations of interest; 

(c) consideration of any matter referred to the Committee for a 

decision in  relation to call-in of a decision; 

(d) (responses of the policy committee(s) to reports of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

(e) the business otherwise set out in the agenda for the meeting; and 

(f) the work programme. 

 
15.2 Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee conducts investigations 

(e.g.  with a view to policy development), the Committee may  also ask 

people to  attend to give evidence at committee meetings which are to 
be conducted in accordance with the following principles: 

 
(a) that the investigation be conducted fairly and all members of 

the  Committee given the opportunity to ask questions of 
attendees, to  contribute and speak; 

(b) that those assisting the Committee by giving evidence be 

treated with respect and courtesy; and 

(c) that the investigation be conducted so as to maximise the 

efficiency of the investigation or analysis. 

 
15.3 Following any investigation or review, the Committee shall prepare a 

report for submission to the appropriate policy committee and/or Council 

as appropriate and shall make its report and findings public. 
 
 

 

Page 19



Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

Part V / Page 32 

 

 

 

16. Oversight Commissions 

 
16.1 Part of the role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to provide support 

to the two policy committees by holding commissions on specific areas as 

requested by those committees. 

 
To commence a commission: - 

 

 The Prosperous Communities Committee and/or  the Corporate Policy 

and Resources Committee will agree the purpose, scope and terms of 

reference of a commission and make a formal request via the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny (by formal report) that a commission is 

established to investigate in detail a particular issue from a national, 

regional, sub-regional and local perspective. 

 

 The proposed report and terms of reference for a commission should be 

agreed with the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to being 
submitted to the commissioning policy committee for agreement.’ 

 
 In undertaking such a commission, the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee may hold inquiries and investigate options for future direction 

in policy development.  They may appoint advisers and assessors to 
assist in this process.  They may go on site visits, conduct public 
surveys, hold public meetings, commission research and do all  other 
things that they reasonably consider necessary to inform their 
deliberations.  They may ask witnesses to attend to address it on any 
matter under consideration and may pay to any advisers, assessors and 

witnesses a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so, as specified in 
the Constitutional operating procedures. 

 
 If a budget is required this will need to be agreed by the commissioning 

Committee. 

 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will report back their 
findings to the Commissioning Policy Committee. 

Page 20



1 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan 

 
Purpose: 
The table below provides a summary of meetings scheduled throughout 2022/23 and 
notes items of business that are due to be heard.  
 
Members of the Committee are asked to consider additional items of business. 
Suggestions include a summary report of the outcome of the review regarding the process 
for Disabled Facilities Grants and a progress report from Everyone Active.  
 
Members are requested to be mindful of allowing scope for referrals from the policy 
committees or Council, as well as the regular review of the full forward plan for all 
committees.  
 
Recommendation: 

1. That Members consider the proposed areas of work for Civic Year 2022/23, with an 
updated work plan to be presented at the next available meeting.  

 
 

Date of Meeting Suggested Items of Business 

17 May 2022 Operating Methodology 
Future Work Plan 

5 July 2022 ?? Scrutiny of P&D End of Year report 

6 September 2022 Presentation from Lincolnshire Police 

4 October 2022  

8 November 2022 ?? Scrutiny of P&D mid-year reporting 

17 January 2023  

21 February 2023  

28 March 2023 Draft Annual O&S Report 
 
?? denotes date to be confirmed 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5b



1 

Full Forward Plan All Committees (as at 9 May 2022) 

 
Purpose: 
This report provides a summary of reports due at upcoming meetings for 2022/23. 
 
Recommendation: 

1. That Members note the contents of the report 
 

Date 
 

Title Lead Officer Purpose of the report Date First 
Published 

CORPORATE POLICY & RESOURCES 

16 JUNE 2022 

14 Apr 2022 Appointment of Shareholder Representative Tracey Bircumshaw, 
Assistant Director of 
Finance and Property 
Services and Section 151 
Officer 

To propose the appointment of the 
Shareholder Representative of our 
subsidiary and joint venture companies 

21 March 2022 

16 Jun 2022 Budget and Treasury Monitoring Final Outturn 
2021/2022 

Sue Leversedge, 
Business Support Team 
Leader 

This report sets out the final budget 
outturn position for revenue and capital 
2021/2022, and requests approval for 
transfer to General Fund working 
balances. 

21 March 2022 

16 Jun 2022 Progress & Delivery Quarter Four Darren Mellors, 
Performance & 
Programme Manager 

Progress & Delivery Quarter Four 21 March 2022 

16 Jun 2022 Levelling Up Fund Resources Amy Potts, Senior Project 
Support Officer 

The report will provide a LUF update, 
spend to date, and seek approval for 
officers to manage remaining 
expenditure. Follow up from 16th 
December 2021 CP&R report. 

 

16 Jun 2022 Asbestos Management Policy Gary Reevell, Property & 
Assets Manager 

Policy and subsequent guidance on the 
Council approach to the management 
of asbestos containing materials 

 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6a



2 

28 JULY 2022 

21 Jul 2022 Parking Strategy David Kirkup The parking management service is 
renewing its parking strategy. This 
report will submit the strategy to 
members for information and approval 

15 November 
2021 

COUNCIL 

4 JULY 2022 

4 Jul 2022 Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 Paul Loveday, Corporate 
Finance Manager 

To report on the Treasury Management 
activities and prudential indicators for 
2021/22 in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2003 

21 March 2022 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT 

14 JUNE 2022 

14 Jun 2022 Annual Counter Fraud Report 2021/22 Tracey Bircumshaw, 
Assistant Director of 
Finance and Property 
Services and Section 151 
Officer 

To inform members of counter fraud 
activity, instances of fraud during the 
year and future 

21 March 2022 

14 Jun 2022 Member Development Annual Report 
2021/2022 

Ele Snow, Senior 
Democratic and Civic 
Officer 

To review Member Development for the 
previous Civic Year and to agree 
relevant actions for the current Civic 
Year 

21 March 2022 

14 Jun 2022 Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/2022 Alistair Simson, Principal 
Auditor, Lincolnshire 
County Council 

To present the annual report. 21 March 2022 

19 JULY 2022 

19 Jul 2022 Internal Audit Quarter 1 Report 2022/23 Alistair Simson, Principal 
Auditor, Lincolnshire 
County Council 

To present the Quarter 1 Internal Audit 
Report 2022/23. 

21 March 2022 

19 Jul 2022 Annual Voice of the Customer Report 2021/22 Natalie Kostiuk, Customer To summarise customer feedback from  

P
age 23



3 

Experience Officer the year 2021/22 and analyse customer 
contact and demand data to provide a 
clear view of the voice of the customer. 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

11 Oct 2022 Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGSCO)  Annual Review Letter 
Report 2021/22 

Natalie Kostiuk, Customer 
Experience Officer 

Report on the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) 
Annual Review letter 2021/22 covering 
complaints referred to them between 
April 2021 and March 2022. Examining 
upheld complaints, learning actions and 
benchmarking with other authorities. 

 

11 Oct 2022 Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2022/23 Alistair Simson, Principal 
Auditor, Lincolnshire 
County Council 

To present the Quarter 2 Internal Audit 
Report.s 

 

JOINT STAFF CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

26 MAY 2022 

26 May 2022 Covid19 Staff Survey Results - March 2022 Emma Redwood, 
Assistant Director People 
and Democratic Services 

To provide JSCC with report for results 
of Covid19 staff survey March 2022 

 

26 May 2022 Annual Health & Safety Update 2021-22 Emma Redwood, 
Assistant Director People 
and Democratic Services 

To provide an overview of the health 
and safety work for 2021-22 

 

26 May 2022 JSCC Staff Representative Emma Redwood, 
Assistant Director People 
and Democratic Services 

To set out plans for staff representative 
membership of JSCC 

 

26 May 2022 Annual Absence Update 2021-22 Emma Redwood, 
Assistant Director People 
and Democratic Services 

To provide an overview of absence for 
the year 2021-22 

 

PROSPEROUS COMMUNITIES 

7 JUNE 2022 

7 Jun 2022 Visitor Economy Strategy 2022 Wendy Osgodby, Senior The purpose of this paper is to obtain 21 March 2022 

P
age 24



4 

Growth Strategy & 
Projects Officer 

endorsement of the West Lindsey 
District Visitor Economy Strategy 2022. 

7 Jun 2022 Progress & Delivery Quarter Four (2021-22) Darren Mellors, 
Performance & 
Programme Manager 

Quarter Four - Progress & Delivery 
performance management report 
(2021-22) 

 

19 JULY 2022 

19 Jul 2022 Selective Licensing - Timeline and Action Plan Andy Gray, Housing and 
Enforcement Manager 

To provide committee with a timeline 
and action plan in response to the 
recommendation agreed at PCC on 
3/5/22 

 

REGULATORY 

9 JUNE 2022 

9 Jun 2022 Gainsborough Cemeteries - Public Space 
Protection Order Review 

Andy Gray, Housing and 
Enforcement Manager 

To review the PSPO for Gainsborough 
Cemeteries and consider whether to 
remove, vary or extend it. 

21 March 2022 

15 SEPTEMBER 2022 

15 Sep 2022 Cafe/Pavement Licenses - Future Proposals Andy Gray, Housing and 
Enforcement Manager 

To consider options for future delivery 
of this service, subject to any legislation 
extension or change. 

15 November 
2021 

15 Sep 2022 Gainsborough Cemeteries PSPO - Decision Andy Gray, Housing and 
Enforcement Manager 

To determine whether to extend, vary 
or discharge the Gainsborough 
Cemeteries PSPO 

 

 

P
age 25


	Agenda
	5a Overview and Scrutiny Operating Methodology
	App 1 Proposed O&S Operating Methodology May 2022
	App 2 O&S Terms of Reference
	App 3 O&S Procedure Rules

	5b Preparations for Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan for Civic Year 2022/23
	6a Forward Plan

